






Questions and Answers to Bank Questions for the State of Georgia RFQB for Georgia Department of Revenue: 

Just as a Reminder - ALL FINAL RFP PROPOSALS ARE DUE ON
FRIDAY, October 7, 2011 at 4:30 ET.

DOR and OST have received over 175 questions in regards to this RFQB.  Many of these questions are technical and complex. Not all questions have been completed at this time.  DOR and OST will update all prospective Banks upon completion of the remaining unanswered questions.
1. Part V., DOR Operating Bank Accounts; a payroll and overhead expenses account but did not see any mention of a payroll debit card. Will that be another procurement or is DOR going to participate in the payroll program OST just recently put out for bid? 

Currently DOR has no plans for stored value/debit cards for payroll. DOR will not participate in the payroll program just recently bid out for by OST.  DOR may add stored value payroll cards for employees at a later date but is not in scope for this RFQB.  
2. Page 4, Bank Fee Schedules. Since this is a three year bid, will these fee schedules be locked until the end of DOR deal? Or will we be allowed to change pricing at the beginning of FY13, like under current bank fee payment program rules? If it is locked, how will future agency bids impact this pricing submitted by winning bank(s)? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
3. Page 16, Section V, General Operating Account Questions, question #6. Based on the current State’s Gift and Gratuity rules, are there any limits to what a bank can offer a State employee? 
Nothing that can be valued for more than $25.00

4. Page 20, OST Reporting, question #6. Exhibit C is mentioned in the question, we do not see an exhibit C in the attachments of the email. Can you provide Exhibit C? 
Attachment C is posted to the OST website.  This attachment pertains to the fees for Refund Disbursement Accounts.

5. Page 7, Purpose of Solicitation, Can you provide a list of DOR’s 12 regional offices’ exact addresses where the Cash Handling Systems will be installed? When we receive response on 9/23, we will not have enough to include armor car provider’s pricing in our response. Would it be acceptable for the bank to provide the process for receiving the best pricing associated with armor car service and cost of safes, instead of actual cost? 
Refer to the attached document for list / address of the regional offices. Based on further evaluation, it has been determined the need for Cash Handling Systems will be limited to the Century Center – Atlanta and TradePort locations. In place of the Cash Handling Systems, DOR is seeking check scanners to be linked to applicable bank accounts. DOR will need to receive actual cost for armored courier services.

6. Page 11, Section III, Stored Value Card Requirements, question # 9. What is meant by “Certification letter”, is this a letter provided by the bank that states all accounts will be FDIC insured? 
Yes, and per individual participant, as stated. 

7. Please describe what takes place within your "check 21” process.

(DOR and OST are still researching this question)
8. Please provide the timing for the ACH Debit origination and ACH Credit files.
DOR validates and records revenue collections each day for the prior day, therefore, the funds must be available. Once the funds have been validated, DOR provides the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) the amount to sweep. The funds are swept on a two business day lag.
9. Is there a need to distribute detail around ACH Debit transactions via e-mail, fax, print/mail.
DOR will need to obtain the detail. This detail should be available through the bank’s on-line treasury management system.  Also, there is a need to have export functionality of the data into a Microsoft Excel format.
10. Please provide the details necessary for you to post the payment to the payer’s tax record.

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
11. Please elaborate more on your requirements for the managing of returns of funds for cards that have been inactive for 6 months (a general description of the requirement and whether or not the process is shared with DOAS or solely owned by the selected vendor).
Stored Value Cards that were never activated must be deactivated after 180 days and funds returned to DOR. 
12. Please describe the types of electronic transfers that are received.
ACH Debit, ACH Credit , Wires
13. If checks were outsourced:
  

a) What is the average daily volume of checks? The volume is seasonal.
b) Are there peak days, months, and/or weeks for activity (if so, please provide the details)? Peak months are from January through June.
c) What would be the desired turnaround time between file receipt and the mailing of checks? 3 to 4 business days.
d) Would the checks be mailed directly to the payee or would they be delivered back to the DOR? Mailed directly to the payee.


14. Please provide the timeline for receipt of ACH files versus the effective date for these transactions.
3 to 4 business days.
15. Please describe the notification process for notifying local governments of their sales tax payments (as well as providing any supporting detail).
DOR provides an on-line database where the historical sales tax distribution data can be retrieved. No pre-notifications are provided to the local governments. 
16. Please describe the level of detail required for the detailed payment notifications (e.g., Are you providing confirmation of the receipt of the file or do you need more granular level of detail around the individual transactions within the file).
DOR does not provide a pre-note. If this request is related to the file we send to the bank to process ACH payments, there is detail contained in the TXP Addendum which indicates the tax type. DOR is provided with notifications of ACH items that are returned or banking information that needs to be updated from NACHA through the bank.

17. Please describe how you handle the collection and storage of bank account information from the local governments.
The bank account information is collected by DOR and updated in the Integrated Tax Solution.

18. Please describe how you handle the collection and storage of bank account information from the local governments.
Vendors provide their applicable information via a vendor maintenance form. This form is provided to the State Accounting Office and the vendor is set-up in the financial system.
19. Please describe the following line Items:


a) LIBRIS LBX DETAIL SORT-ROUGH—SORTING FEES
b) LIBRIS LBX DOCUMENT NOTATIONS—MISCELLANEOUS HANDLING FEES
c) LIBRIS INFODEL-AUTO-TRANS—TRANSACTION FEES
d) LIBRIS DET SORT-FUNCT-DIV—SORTING FEES
e) LIBRIS LBX-SPECIAL HANDLING-- MISCELLANEOUS HANDLING FEES
f) LIBRIS LBX-SUBS VOUCHER—SEPARATING VOUCHER FEES
LIBRIS is a bank’s product name and comes from the Latin word meaning “expensive”

20. Please supply sample document of all scannable boxes and any other returnable documents received in the lockbox.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
21. Do any of the DOR departments receive their documents and check copies in a package from your lockbox vendor?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
22. Please provide the details of what fields are being captured in the various lockboxes.

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
23. Please describe the 12 different lockboxes in terms of business purpose (i.e., any details regarding the lockboxes that contain unique requirements, etc.)

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
24. Please describe the frequency and timing of the ‘value added’ keying volume (i.e., provide details regarding your volume spike and the nature of the items being keyed and the source of the data).

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
25. What is the total dollar amount of cash expected to be fed to safes per location per month?

Based on further evaluation, it has been determined the need for Cash Handling Systems will be limited to the Century Center Atlanta and TradePort locations.
26. What is the total number of safes expected to be required? 
2
27. Are tax revenues collected evenly over the course of a given calendar month or are there peaks at the middle and end of the month? (This could impact the number of safes/pickups required) 
There is no peaks in the regional offices. The collected amount depends on multiple factors. DOR is seeking check scanners at the regional offices that can be linked to multiple bank accounts.


28. Are coin deposits expected? If so, what is the expected volume? 

Regional offices normally do not accept coins. The primary locations that would accept coins are Century Center Atlanta and TradePort.

29. Are coin/currency orders expected? If so, what is the expected volume? 

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
30. Please identify and describe the required tax types expected to be reported.

Primarily Individual, Corporate, Sales Tax, Withholding, and Assessments.
31. How is the different tax types reported and reconciled today by either GDOR or current financial services provider?  

Funds are deposited by regional offices at the applicable bank and the deposit information provided to the Finance Office.

32. Is the expectation that the multiple tax types would be deposited into the same account or unique accounts? 

Same account.
33. The most cost-effective safe contracts are priced against hardware depreciation over a 5 year-period, which significantly lowers the monthly cost of the safe. Is the current 1-2 year contract term requirement negotiable to take advantage of the best market rates available?
Typically contracts are on an annual basis and can be renewed yearly depending on the availability of funds appropriated to DOR.
34. Is DOR open to purchasing the safe hardware directly or is a monthly rental/leasing program required? 
Monthly rental / lease.
35. What goals does the State hope to achieve should they elect to accept a bidder’s proposal to implement an automated safe solution in their 12 DOR regional offices and possibly in Tags/Tiles locations across the State? 
E.g. is the goals operational, financial, labor savings, efficiency focused?
Goals:  1) safe guarding assets of the state, 2) safety of personnel in depositing funds at the bank, 3) same-day credit of funds at the bank, 4) reduced labor time / cost, and 5) increased operational efficiency.
36. How many live checks were issued to taxpayers for the 2010 tax year? 
Paper checks issued for individual income tax refunds in FY11 (2010 tax season): 1,286,870.
37. Stored Value Card Requirements/Number 13 (page 11):



a. To what applicable Georgia officials is this referring?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
b. What entity is the “new card issuer” in this provision? 

The bank which is awarded the business. 

38. Card Restrictions/ Question #2 (p. 11):

a. How will the Bank know what entities have been authorized for deposits?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
39. Page 13 – Question #5 

a. Please describe your current process for providing joint filers refund payments? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
b. Pertaining to joint refunds, please confirm if you are looking for the vendor to provide two cards (for both the primary and a joint account filer)
DOR will need two cards, one card issued to the primary filer and one to the joint account filer.
40. Technical Requirements Questions: 
(DOR and OST are still researching parts of this question).
a. Can the Georgia Department of Revenue provide a detailed specification/data flow of the funds and real money transmission?
b. Can Georgia Department of Revenue provide a current process flow related to joint filings?
c. Can the Georgia Department of Revenue provide more detail regarding Interface 5? What is this used for? Interface 5 is very similar to Interface 6's header.
Interface 5 should be removed – it appears twice.

d. If interface 6 is used for funding, can the Georgia Department of Revenue provide more detail related to what will be coming through ACH file? (Adjustments/corrections)?
Interface 5 should be removed – it appears twice.

e. Can the Georgia Department of Revenue provide more detail in regards to the use of the card number as primary key for the interfaces?  

DOR does not have to use the card number as the primary key.  It would be better to use the bank account number in the case that a card must be re-issued.

41. What is the name of the system that the awarded bank will be required to integrate with?  

Is there any specific software requirement that we should know for the purposes of making a seamless connection? 

ITS (Integrated Tax Solution) and PeopleSoft Financials / HRMS.  For  all software  and coding requirements, see Attachment H.

42. Is there a separate system that the debit Card program will need to integrate with?

If “Yes”, what is the name of that system? 
NO
43. If DOR responds to questions after 9/23, will the due date be extended accordingly?  (Bidders need time to update, finalize, their best proposals.)
The RFQB proposal deadline is now 4:30ET October 7, 2011.
44. Please provide the addresses with zip codes of the 12 regional offices and of DOR’s Tag and Title offices throughout the state.  What is the total number of offices accepting funds and making deposits?

Refer to the attached document for a list / address of regional offices. TradePort is the only Tag & Tile location in DOR. Tag & Title locations are provided by local governments. There are 11 regional offices that accept funds and make deposits.
45. Does DOR currently use a cash handling system?  If so, what system and machines are currently in use?  

No 

46. Which vendor does DOR use for armored transportation?
Dunbar Armored Car Services.
47. Do Tag and Title offices receive or order coin and currency?

NO 
48. How much money in currency do each of the 12 regional offices and Tag and Title offices collect in an average month?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
49. How much money in coin do each of the 12 regional offices and Tag and Title offices collect in an average month?
Limited, if any, coin collection in the regional offices. The primary locations that may receive coin collections are Century Center Atlanta and TradePort.
50. How many checks do each of the 12 regional offices and Tag and Title offices collect in an average month?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
51. How much money in coin and currency do each of the 12 regional offices and Tag and Title offices order each month?
None 
52. “Page 13, #6. Bank must not allow for the charging of any fees to cardholders who have not pinned their card.”  Will it be acceptable to use card activation as the event to determine if it is appropriate to charge cardholder fees?  
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
Our system is unique in that we separately track card activation and PIN selection.  We allow our cardholders to choose to not select a PIN for their card and instead use it as a signature only card.

53. The first bullet references access to web-based tools for merchant cards (debit and credit).  Are there any merchant card requirements in this proposal, or is this requirement not applicable? 

Not applicable 
54. Is lockbox services part of the collections bid? 
Yes.
55. Is a Georgia address a requirement? 
For Lockbox services, there is no requirement for a Georgia address. However, it is a preference. 
56. Where is the lockbox currently processed? Is more than one site used? 
Atlanta, one site.
57.  How many mail deliveries do you receive per day? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
58. Do you process on the weekends and holidays? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
59. Is this a wholesale or retail box? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
60. Do you utilize a coupon or statement with an OCR scan line? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
61. Do you supply a windowed return envelope? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
62. Is there a check digit in your scan line? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
63. Does more than one payment type go into a lockbox? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
64. Do you allow unbalanced payments? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
65. How do you handle multiples? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
66. How do you handle Checks without account numbers? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
67. How do you handle notes and correspondence? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
68. Do unprocessable payments get returned or deposited via suspense? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
69. Are there any special processes in place today? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
70. Do you use multiple lockboxes? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
71. How do you access your lockbox payments today? Physical return of paper or image service 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
72. Do you utilize data entry/ If so, what fields do you collect and how many characters are each field? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
73. Do you receive a daily data transmission or image transmission? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
74. Please explain any special processing instructions in place today? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
75. Can you separate volume and requirements between wholesale and retail. 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
76. Can you describe the relationship between your processor (Tradeport) and your depository banks? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
77. Can you explain in greater detail the solution or partnership that can link cash, check, money order or electronic transfers to a specified DOR account? 
This is a question DOR and OST would like for the banks to address in the proposal. DOR wants to take advantage of available technologies to integrate its cash flows in the most productive and efficient manner.  Remote check scanners, Cash Handling Machines (Smart Safes) and stored value cards will be utilized to complement other paper-based and electronic treasury management services. Reporting is another important component of the solution. 
78. Do you currently use a remote deposit scanner for deposits in your Regional offices? 
NO 
79. Can you provide the amount of cash received in each Regional office (high, medium and low)? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
80. Do the Regional offices currently use armored service, if so, number of days a week and cost, if possible? 
Currently only the TradePort location. This is daily.
81. How many deposits are made daily by the Regional offices? 
Anywhere from 2-5 deposits per week per Regional Office.  The Rome Regional office has 7 to 10 deposits per week

82. How many trips do the Regional offices make to the bank? 
Anywhere from 2-5 deposits per week per Regional Office.  The Rome Regional office has 7 to 10 deposits per week
83. What are the average bank fees associated with cash deposits for each Regional office? 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
84. How often are the funds from the Regional offices concentrated to the main account? 
Funds are deposited to the applicable DOR bank account. Once the funds have been validated and recorded, DOR provides the Office of the State Treasurer with the amounts and they are swept daily.
85. How many banks do the Regional offices deposit with today? 
Two (2)
86. Are the Regional offices looking to save labor cost by implementing this solution, if so, what is the average hourly wage of the people that make daily deposits? 
Yes,  $10-$12 per hour. 
87. What is the current cost of bank bags and deposit tickets. 
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
88. What is the timing of your Stored Value Card program launch?
July 2012
89. Please let us know your current annual transaction banking fees for DOR’s collections, payables, liquidity and information reporting banking services.
Fiscal Year 2011 (July 1, 2010- June 30, 2011) Annual Banking Fees for all DOR accounts were $3.75M
a. Please confirm that if the bank were to provide revised/reduced pricing for this DOR RFQB that differs from the original Bank Fee pricing schedule we submitted in June 2011, would this new DOR pricing apply to only this agency?  Or would this new pricing apply to all new pieces of business awarded to our bank going forward for any agency/organization within the State?
A bank’s new proposal if accepted for DOR services would apply to all other state of Georgia accounts as well. Tiered pricing proposals based on volume are encouraged. 
90. Do you pay the current provider by using compensating balances or direct fees?  If compensating balances are used, what is your current Earnings Credit Rate net of FDIC charges? 

Direct Fees
91. What is the total average monthly balance that the state will maintain with the selected vendor?  
The Operating and Payroll bank accounts would be approximately $4M and $10k respectively per month.

a. How much in collateral does the current provider(s) post on a monthly basis? 

i. Does the state require collateralization of the daily maximum balance or the monthly average? If the max daily balance is used to determine collateral, what has this value been historically?
No collateral is required if the bank account is a non-interest bank account.  If the bank account is an interest bearing account, FDIC insurance covers deposits up to $250,000.  Any amount over $250,000 on an interest bearing account will require collateral of 110% of any amount exceeding $250,000. (For example a balance of $430,000 would require collateral of $198,000, ($430,000-$250,000)X1.10= $198,000) 

92. Page 4 – Please describe DOR’s back-end operations. How many back-end systems do your current banking providers integrate with to receive payment files or send reconciliation files?
All operations are being implemented into DOR’s Integrated Tax Solution (ITS) which is one system.
93. Please describe your Integrated Tax Solution (ITS), specifically the types of payables that will be initiated – Wire, ACH or Check issuance
DOR will initiate ACH and Check payments for refunds.

94. Please describe the payments and reconciliations files that are sent from PeopleSoft 
The only files sent from PeopleSoft would be for the Operating and Payroll bank accounts. The files are sent to the respective banks primarily for Positive Pay purposes. These files are not sent by DOR; they are sent via GTA / State Accounting Office batch process.

95. Please describe the payments and reconciliations files that are sent from other Payroll systems
The only files sent from PeopleSoft would be for the Operating and Payroll bank accounts. The files are sent to the respective banks primarily for Positive Pay purposes.

96. Is your back-end centralized or decentralized for payables, collections and reporting (Centralized – meaning all payments are initiated from a single PeopleSoft instance, whereby all ACH, Checks are Wire payments are initiated centrally OR Decentralized – meaning that each entity’s payments are initiated from separate ERP servers)
Payments for the Operating and Payroll bank accounts are initiated from PeopleSoft Financials and HRMS. Payments for revenue refunds are initiated from GenTax (Integrated Tax Solution).

97. Please describe your preferred file format for payments. (For example, NACHA (ACH only), ANSI EDI 820, Flat file, XML etc.)
DOR will use a combination of NACHA and Flat Files.

98. Please let us know if your preference is to send a separate payment file per payment type or if your preference is to send a consolidated payment file for Wire, ACH and check payment.
The Operating and Payroll bank account files are consolidated. The revenue refunds are separated via tax type and by payment type (ACH and check).
99. Please describe the frequency of Refund Disbursements – daily, weekly, monthly.  Are the refunds initiated from the same back-end?
Daily.  Refunds issued from GenTax (Integrated Tax Solution).
100. Please clarify the file format for Wire, ACH and checks. Is DOR open to sending consolidated payables files for ALL payments – electronic and paper disbursements?  If so, what is your preferred file format – Flat file, EDI 820, ISO XML etc.
DOR prefers Flat Files in this instance.
101. Please clarify the reconciliation files that will be required for reporting and payables reconciliation.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
102. Please let us know your preferred file format prior-day or intra-day reporting – MT940 or BAI2
BAI 2

103. Please clarify the number of reports that will be generated for each account on a daily basis.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
104. Page 7 – Please clarify our understanding of your  monthly volumes based on the Attachments provided:
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
i. Check payments – 

ii. ACH payments – 

iii. Wire payments –  

iv. Lockbox –  

105. Page 6 and 7  Please let us know the difference between Revenue Collection accounts (section 1) and Revenue Collection accounts for Regional Offices (section 2)
There is no difference, may use different banks.

a. What is the purpose of the these accounts
To collect funds received by tax payers.

106. Page 7 –  Revenue Collection Accounts

Please clarify if the 12 Regional offices each have a separate collection account or if they share a single collections account

Depends on the tax type; there are currently 2 bank accounts.

107. Please let us know the number of Tag and Title offices throughout the state.  Will each Tag and Title office require a separate account?
DOR has a centralized Department of Motor Vehicles at the TradePort location (Atlanta). There are no other DOR Tag & Title offices. The local governments have Tag & Title offices.

108. What are your lockbox data capture requirements if any? 
i) Is data entry required? Numeric or Alphanumeric? What are the field lengths

ii) Invoice number

iii) Invoice amount

iv) Check number

v) Check amount
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
109. If Lockbox Services are required, can you provide your current lockbox Statement of Work (SOW) or equivalent requirements document?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
110. Can any Data entry elements be scanned from the OCR line?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
111. Please provide volume of payment received monthly into the lockbox broken out by box; percent of singles, multiples, check only, check and list, rejects and exceptions items.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
112. Do you use coupons with OCR scan lines? Do scan lines contain check digit routines?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
113. Do you require special batching, document locator numbers or special sorts?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
114. Please provide lockbox output file requirements for each box
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
115. Can you share file requirements for integration to DOR’s Integrated Tax Solution and other accounting systems used by the State?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
116. Does the State have special reporting requirements? If so please elaborate.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
117. Alternatively, if lockbox processing is not in scope is the State requesting the provider to accept a paper or image cash letter from the lockbox for processing?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
118. Please provide specific lockbox volumes, if lockbox services are required.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
119. Does the State currently use remote deposit capture at the regional offices and tag at title locations?
NO 
120. If yes, how many scanners do you support today? Do you envision replacing the equipment with new scanners or adding additional scanners?
N/A
121. What is/are the models in use today?
N/A
122. Do you scan remittance documents with the checks today? If yes please provide samples.
NO
123. Do you scan in a front office/point of sale environment or back office?
NO

124. Do you have any unique remote deposit capture requirements?

Must follow all Check 21 requirements.

125. How many locations will require cash handling (“Smart Safe”) solution?
Based upon further evaluation, Cash Handling Systems will be needed at the Century Center Atlanta and TradePort locations. DOR is seeking a solution using check scanners at the regional office locations. See Attachment O for locations.  
126. What is your deposit amount per location, per day (cash only)?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
127. How many armored car pickups will you need each week?
Depends on the capabilities of the Cash Handling System. Currently, daily armored car services are provided only at the TradePort location.  Also, the department is seeking a solution with check scanners at the regional office locations.
128. What volume of notes do you intend to deposit daily?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
129. Can you provide the deposit denominations ($100, $50, $20, $10, $5, $1) per location?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
130. Do you have any seasonal activity? If yes, please provide a breakdown of seasonal activity (high month vs. low month)
No.
131. Please describe any volume fluctuations daily and/or monthly.
None
132. Describe your account reporting needs?
The cash handling system will need to provide daily reports by tax type and by personnel.
133. Can we place a physical “Smart Safe” at your locations? There may be a need to secure the Smart safe to your premises (i.e. drilling holes in the floor/concrete). Does this present an issue for you?
Yes. This is not an issue. 
134. Do you require vault/ remote deposit capture for coins and checks in addition to a cash handling system?
DOR is seeking a solution using check scanners.
135. Do you recycle notes on site?
No.
136. Would the location for the system have internet, telephone and electrical access?
Yes.
137. Do you have size limitations for the equipment footprint?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
138. What percentage of your deposit are coin, currency and/or checks?
Each regional office averages between 500-800 checks per month (DOR and OST are still researching this question).
139. Please provide a breakdown of the denominations in your currency deposit?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
$100 
X_____



$50 
X_____




$20
X_____



$10 
X_____




$5 

X_____




$1 

X_____




140. What is the frequency of your deposits? Does it differ for DOR and Tag and Title Offices? Daily, Weekly, other?
Anywhere from 2-5 deposits per week per Regional Office.  The Rome Regional office has 7 to 10 deposits per week

141. What is the total number of deposits per month?
Anywhere from 2-5 deposits per week per Regional Office.  The Rome Regional office has 7 to 10 deposits per week

142. What is the total dollar of deposits per month?
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
143. What is the total number of monthly deposits by location?
Anywhere from 2-5 deposits per week per Regional Office.  The Rome Regional office has 7 to 10 deposits per week

144. Is Deposit Activity Seasonal?  If so, provide Low Deposit Month vs. Highest Deposit month totals.
No, Regional office deposits are not seasonal. 
145. Seasonal activity for cash (coin & currency) delivery needs?  If yes, provide Low Deposit Month vs. Highest Deposit month totals.
There are not any special seasonal needs for cash. 

146. Please describe any volume fluctuations during the month
None to speak of. 

147. Please provide the list of locations with street address, city, state and zip for DOR and Tag and Title Offices. 

a. Please indicate if you use Night Deposit at any of these locations.
See Attachment O.  
148. Deposit Preparation

a. How are note deposits prepared?  

b. Are they in bags and/or boxes?

c. Are deposit slips included?

d. Are there separate envelopes within a deposit?

e. Average Deposits per location per day. (Both volume and dollar amount.)

f. Are deposits balances and information reconciled?  

g. If so, briefly describe process.

h. How are coin deposits prepared? 

i. Loose or rolled?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
149. Orders (cash/coin):

a. Frequency of orders? (daily, weekly, other?)

b. Average amount per order per order. 

c. Order method preference : phone, internet, or standing order

d. Typical Note Orders ($20’s, 10’s, 5’s, 1’s)

e. Typical Coin Orders (Qtr., Nickels, Dimes, Pennies)

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
150. Describe your account management process and needs?

a. What type of file can you accept (BAI 1, BAI 2, other)?

BAI 2
151. Do your regional centers support electronic payment kiosks?  Do they have drop boxes?
There are no kiosks in the regional offices, however, DOR is open to additional information. There are no drop boxes.
152. Does the DOR currently have a Web-based Tax collection portal?

Yes
153. Page 8 –  Please clarify the number of Refund Disbursement accounts that will be required?

Depends on the solution proposed by the bank; currently there are 4 refund disbursement bank accounts.
154. Page 9 –- Question 5 Please let us know the average number of checks that are cashed on a monthly basis.
Paper checks issued for individual income tax refunds in FY11 (2010 tax season): 1,286,870.
155. Please let us know the zip codes where check encashment will be required as well as the monthly volume.
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
156. Please let us know if there is a minimum requirement for the number of check cashing locations within a zip code? If so, please elaborate.

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
157. Page 10 - Is DOR anticipating launch of prepaid card refund disbursements in 2012 (i.e. beginning in January 2012, disbursing refunds from 2011 filings)?  
July 2012
158. Regarding the 3 sections listed below, as it relates to the options presented to filers for refund disbursements - can DOR provide guidance on how the refund disbursement options will be presented?  
(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
159. (For instance, we would anticipate a variable adoption of the stored value card based upon whether the 3 options are presented equally, or the filer has to take additional action to request the check as an exception?  We are seeking guidance on what has been contemplated.)
· Section III. Refund Disbursement Accounts, Purpose of Solicitation on Page 8 – “Paper check is the default method of disbursement unless a taxpayer 
· chooses ACH direct deposit by providing their bank account information to DOR.” 
Currently, the taxpayer receives a paper check unless they request a direct deposit of their refund and provide applicable bank information. In FY12 (2011 tax season) the taxpayer can opt-in and receive a debit card in place of a check. In FY13 (2012 tax season) the taxpayer can opt-out of the debit card and receive a check. In FY14 (2013 tax season) the taxpayer will receive a debit card or direct deposit.
· Section III. Refund Disbursement Accounts, Scope of Services to Be Performed, Check Refund Accounts, Page 9 – “DOR intends to offer a single purpose payment stored value card option in lieu of check processing to minimize the number of checks issued annually.”  
The objective is to eliminate checks.
· Section III. Refund Disbursement Accounts, Scope of Services to Be Performed, Stored Value Refund Accounts, Page 10 – “In order to move away from paper checks as the default disbursement method, DOR is soliciting Qualified Banks to begin issuing stored value/debit cards as another means of disbursing tax refunds.” 

The objective is to eliminate checks and replace with a debit card.
160. Following the question directly above, is there an intent to eliminate checks entirely, and if so, by what target date?

No date has been established. 
161. Page 11, # 6  Would DOR provide clarification on the time horizon for return of undelivered funds?  (We would expect a time period in which the intended recipient has an ample opportunity to access their tax refunds at their own pace.)

162. Page 11, # 9 – Would DOR please clarify the description of the letter being requested?  

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
163. Page 12, #13 – Can you elaborate on what exactly is entailed with the contemplated notification processes?  Who specifically would we need to notify and how extensive is this notification supposed to be?  

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
164. Page 12, # 3 – What are the other contemplated State programs and corresponding disbursements onto the same card?

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
165. What are the payment amounts per payment, frequency of the payments, number of actual payment, etc. for the additional programs?  

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
166. Page 13, # 4 – Would DOR consider lengthening the timeframe requirement for availability of funds from one business day to follow standard NACHA timeframes for ACH transfers (typically 24-48 hours on business days)?  

(DOR and OST are still researching this question).
167. Attachment D - The header of Attachment D (pricing) references “employee services”.  Is this meant to read “cardholder services”? 

Yes, that is correct.  

168. Attachment J – Please delineate and identify annual volume of checks and ACH (direct deposits) for tax refunds?  (The line items in Attachment J is not clear on these items.)
Please note that Attachments I, J, K, L, M and N display all account activity and service activity. The bottom line transaction totals in these attachments are overstated by the multiple line items for the different functions in processing services such as lockbox( items processed- matched and unmatched, items sorted, data capture and data transmission) and disbursements (items paid, items reconciled, positive pay items, check safekeeping items and CD ROM items). FDIC Assessments are also extended in some of the total columns.  

i. Would you also please provide updated data for the remainder of 2010 (beyond June) and any check and ACH volume- and payment-related data available for 2011?  

The Data for volume for FY2011 (July 1,2010- June 30, 2011) is currently not formatted. 

169. Page 15 - Please clarify if Attachment J represents the check paid, as the volumes seem to be for the collection services.
Attachment J displays the activity for the lockbox account.

170. Page 15 –  Please clarify the underlying banking services that will be required for the 700 local government accounts  (once the funds have been transferred from OST) e.g. Wire or ACH transfer, check payments with Positive Pay functionality.
The department will provide the bank with a file on how the funds will be disbursed to the local governments. The bank will need to process the file on the settlement date and disburse the funds to the applicable local governments based upon data in the file.
171. Please clarify if these are actually 700 accounts that need to be opened or are these 700 beneficiary accounts that DOR needs to make ACH/check payments to?

These are payments to the beneficiary bank accounts.
172. Page 16 – Please clarify how the two operating accounts will be funded.
Funding is provided through the agency’s state allotment and administrative fees.
173. Will both operating accounts require controlled disbursement with Positive Pay functionality?

Both require Positive Pay. Controlled disbursement is an option for the Operating and Payroll Bank Accounts and depends on the solution proposed by the bank.
174. Technical Specifications (Attachment H): The Direct Deposit Credit File is NACHA format; the Electronic (ACH) Refund specifications do not appear to be so.  Will file mapping services be required to translate the Electronic (ACH) Refund file to NACHA format?

The Electronic (ACH) Refund specifications refer to the Debit Card specs and are not ACH-related.

175. Please clarify your peak daily ACH payments and peak daily Wire payments, including Check payments, to ensure that sufficient clearing lines are in place

The department disburses funds daily from the operating bank account via checks and ACH payments. There are limited wires from the operating bank account. The amount of disbursement on a daily basis may fluctuate based upon the number of payment requests received and processed. The payroll bank account disburses funds based on payroll runs which are weekly and semi-monthly with most of the payments being ACH.
176. Attachments I – N: We are unclear on the annual or monthly transaction volume for:

a. Payments

i. Check volume

ii. ACH volume

iii. Wire volume

iv. Number of files transmitted per month

b. Collections

i. Number of lockboxes and remote check scanners

ii. Check volume

iii. ACH volume

iv. Wire volume

Please provide clarification on the transaction volume. 

Please note that Attachments I, J, K, L, M and N display all account activity and service activity. The bottom line transaction totals in these attachments are overstated by the multiple line items for the different functions in processing services such as lockbox( items processed- matched and unmatched, items sorted, data capture and data transmission) and disbursements (items paid, items reconciled, positive pay items, check safekeeping items and CD ROM items). FDIC Assessments are also extended in some of the total columns.  
177. Which bank(s) are the incumbents for these services?  How long (years) has each service been handled by each bank?
If this request is for our operating accounts, the following apply: Wells Fargo and Bank of America.
178. Can the bank include new services (and associated fees), that we did not include in our original Bank Fee Schedule submitted to Georgia Treasury in June 2011?  (there may be certain services requested in this RFQB which were not contemplated in our original schedule.)
YES 
Please note that all questions are listed verbatim as they were received.
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